IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 01-20045
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,

Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,

ver sus
JOHNNY RAY JOHNSQON,

Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
USDC No. H 00-CR-511-1

July 18, 2002
Bef ore H G3 NBOTHAM W ENER, and BARKSDALE, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *
Johnny Ray Johnson appeals his bench-trial conviction and
sentence for being a felon in possession of firearns and anmuni tion

in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8§ 922(g)(1).! He argues that there was

Pursuant to 5THAQR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that this opinion
should not be published and is not precedent except under the linted
circunstances set forth in 5THQR R 47.5.4.

! As a threshold matter, the governnment asserts that Johnson’s notice of
appeal was premature and has not vested this court with jurisdiction. Atinely
notice of appeal is a prerequisite to this court’s exercise of jurisdiction.
United States v. Wnn, 948 F.2d 145, 153 (5th Gr. 1991). Wi |l e Johnson
prematurely filed his notice of appeal after the verdict but prior to sentencing
and entry of the judgment of conviction, his notice of appeal is nevertheless
effective to appeal his conviction. See id. at 154. Furt hernore, since
Johnson’s intent to appeal his sentence is apparent from his briefs and the
governnent has not asserted that any prejudice would result fromconsidering his



insufficient evidence to support a finding of possession as
required to convict under section 922(g)(1) and that the district
court erred in applying two sentencing enhancenents to upwardly
adj ust his sentence.

There is no merit to Johnson’s contention that there was
insufficient evidence to establish that he possessed the firearns
or ammunition as required for a conviction under 18 U S C 8§
922(9)(1). Drawing all reasonable inferences in favor of the
governnent, the evidence at trial provided sufficient support for
the district court’s finding that Johnson illegally possessed the
firearns and anmunition.? Johnson’s constructive possession of the
front bedroom at 5514 Rue Street in which the firearnms and
anmuni tion were found was established by, inter alia, the evidence
t hat he and Tytheras Bl acknon both stated that he | ived at the 5514
Rue Street address, that his Texas identification card bore that
address, that he stated that he lived in the front bedroom of the
house, and that his clothes were found in that room?

Even assum ng that Johnson jointly occupied the room with
Bl acknon, it can be plausibly inferred, using a commonsense, fact-

speci fi c approach, that Johnson had know edge of and access to the

challenges to his sentence, Johnson's notice of appeal is also effective to
appeal his sentence. See id. at 154-55.

2 See United States v. Rosas-Fuentes, 970 F.2d 1379, 1381 (5th Gr. 1992)
(stating the standard for chall enges to the sufficiency of the evidence follow ng
a bench-trial conviction).

8 See United States v. De Leon, 170 F.3d 494, 496-97 (5th Gir. 1999).

2



firearms and amunition.* The evidence showed that the three
firearns were found in a dresser drawer, the crack cocai ne to which
Johnson pleaded guilty in state court to possessing was found on
top of and under the sane dresser or another dresser in the snal
bedroom and the ammnition was found in the closet in which
Johnson’ s cl othes were | ocat ed.

There is likewise no nerit to Johnson’s assertions that the
district court erred in upwardly adjusting his sentence pursuant to
US S G 88 2K2.1(b)(1) (A & 2K2.1(b)(5). As there was sufficient
evidence to support the district court’s determnation at tria
beyond a reasonabl e doubt that Johnson possessed the firearns and
ammunition at issue in this case, the district court did not err,
clearly or otherwise, in determning at sentencing by a
pr eponder ance of the evidence that Johnson’ s of fense i nvol ved t hree
firearnms and that Johnson possessed the firearns and amrunition
based on the evidence at trial, which Johnson failed to denonstrate
was materially untrue.® Furthernore, the district court did not
err, clearly or otherwise, in determning that Johnson’s rel ated

state court conviction for possession of cocaine arising fromhis

4 See United States v. Mergerson, 4 F.3d 337, 349 (5th Gr. 1993).

5 See United States v. Freeman, 164 F.3d 243, 251 (5th Cr. 1999); United
States v. Davis, 76 F.3d 82, 84 (5th Gr. 1996).
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February 28, 2000 arrest was a felony offense for purposes of
U S S G § 2K2.1(b)(5).°

The judgnent of the district court is AFFI RVED.

6 See U.S. SENTENCING GUIDELINES MANUAL § 2K2.1, cnt. n.7 (“‘Felony offense,’
as used in subsection (b)(5), nmeans any offense (federal, state, or |ocal)
puni shabl e by inprisonment for a term exceeding one year, whether or not a
crimnal charge was brought, or conviction obtained.”); Tex. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE
ANN. 88 481.102(3)(D) & 481.115(b); Tex. PenaL Cope § 12.35(a).
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